


PSERS RFP 2020-3 Retiree Dental Benefits questions:

Given the COVID-19 restrictions, including the governor’s stay-at-home order for Dauphin County, is PSERS still requiring hard copies to be delivered to its headquarters? Can electronic copies be submitted in place of hard copies?

Pennsylvania Governor Tom Wolf issued a Proclamation of Disaster Emergency related to the emergence and spread of the novel coronavirus known as COVID-19, the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania has been taking numerous steps to mitigate and prevent the spread of the virus while maintaining the programs and services provided by the Commonwealth to its citizens.

As a result, PSERS is amending its Proposal Submission Requirements. Please monitor website for all communications regarding the RFP. 

http://www.emarketplace.state.pa.us/Search.aspx

The Issuing Office will not accept proposals via email or facsimile transmission.

Is there a date range for Finalist Presentations for Dental?

If finalist presentations are requested, they will be during the best and final period, May 15 through 20, 2020

The links for A. Technical and B. Cost did not pull up the criteria for evaluation.  Can you please provide this information?

https://www.dgs.pa.gov/MaterialsServicesProcurement/ProcurementResources/Pages/RFP_SCORING_FORMULA.aspx

Is there a family deductible or is this per person?  
	Annual Deductible 
(waived for preventive services)
	Network $0
Non-Network $100



The deductible is per person. There is no family deductible.
Total number of periodontal maintenance treatments and prophylaxis cannot exceed four treatments in a calendar year – is this 4 for each or 4 total?
[image: ]

Periodontal maintenance --- in which periodontal treatment including scaling, root planing, and periodontal surgery, such as gingivectomy, gingivoplasty and osseous surgery has been performed -- is limited to four times in 12 months, less the number of teeth cleanings received during such 12 month period. The respondent has the liberty to propose a limit greater than four treatment in a 12 month period, but this needs to be documented as a deviation.

Is the dedicated customer service inquiry toll-free telephone line specific to PSERS members or specific to the line of coverage?

PSERS is requesting a dedicated customer service inquiry toll-free telephone line(s) specific to PSERS members. Please describe your capabilities in providing this. Otherwise, please describe how your toll-free telephone lines are assigned if at all.

RFP States: “Confirm your agreement to comply with each Customer Service performance standard and disclose your proposed amount of penalty at risk (where applicable).”  Please confirm if the offeror proposes the amount of penalty at risk or if the offeror must follow the amounts in the RFP?

A customer service performance guarantee must be included in the respondent’s submission. The service categories listed could be included in the respondent’s proposed performance guarantee. However, changes to category, metrics or penalty must be clearly disclosed. Otherwise, PSERS assumes that the respondent has agreed to match the service categories, service measures and penalties.

Would PSERS like to see Per Member Per Month rates and not Per Retiree/Contract Per Month? For Fully insured and Monthly Claim Rate.

PSERS is requesting that the respondent propose per member per month rate. PSERS will use the per member per month rates to develop the monthly premium rate structure as follows
            Individual = 1 x Per Member Per Month Rate
            Two-Party = 2 x Per Member Per Month Rate
            Family       = 3 x Per Member Per Month Rate

As it relates to the Background Checks referenced under Section III-5 Work Plan Item G, please describe a scenario when it would be expected the dental carrier or their subcontractor would access the Commonwealth IT Facilities. 
It is not anticipated that the Dental Contractor would be required to access the PSERS IT Facilities to retrieve information critical the proper administration of the plan. Eligibility and premium payment information would all flow through the HOP Administration Unit to/from the Dental Contractor.

Under Section II-4 Evaluation Criterial, Item C  Small Diverse Business and Small Business Participation, it states, “A total combined SDB/SB commitment less than one percent (1%) of the total contract cost is considered de minimis and will receive no Small Diverse Business or Small Business points.”  Please confirm if total cost is defined as premium, which is intended to cover claims, reserves, Plan Administration Expenses and Taxes or if it is defined as the Plan Administration Expenses?  Please also confirm if total cost under a self-insured arrangement is defined as the self-insured fee.
Questions regarding the Small Diverse Business and Small Business Programs, including
questions about the self-certification and verification processes can be directed to:

Department of General Services
Bureau of Diversity, Inclusion and Small Business Opportunities (BDISBO)
Room 611, North Office Building
Harrisburg, PA 17125
Phone: (717) 783-3119
Fax: (717) 787-7052
Email: gs-bdisbo@pa.gov
Website: www.dgs.pa.gov

Would the Commonwealth agree that, if the bidder was awarded the dental business on an insured basis, it would be a Covered Entity, a defined by HIPAA and therefore, a Business Associate Agreement would not be necessary, as we would not be acting as a Business Associate?
If the bidder is awarded the vision benefits on an insured basis, it would be a covered entity as defined by HIPPA and a Business Associate Agreement would not be needed.

Please confirm the spouse and children provided on the census file are eligible members and not covered by a living retired schoolteacher.
Spouses and children on the census file may be covered by a living retiree. However, spouses and dependents must also be enrolled in the HOP Medical or Value Medical program to be eligible for dental plan. 

The RFP requires hardcopies mailed to PSERS.  Due to the mandatory work from home, is there an option for electronic delivery?  We currently have the ability to work with an outside printer, however it does add time and therefore I wanted to see if an electronic delivery option was available with an option to deliver hard copies a couple days later.
PSERS is amending its Proposal Submission Requirements. Please monitor website for all communications regarding the RFP. 

http://www.emarketplace.state.pa.us/Search.aspx
The Issuing Office will not accept proposals via email or facsimile transmission.

· Please clarify if eligible members must enroll into a medical plan to obtain dental insurance? Page 5, provision 1 describes that members may enroll in dental only and later states members must enroll in either HOP or Value Plan.
· “Members may enroll into dental only when they are newly eligible for HOP or during a qualifying event, and must enroll in either a HOP plan or Value Plan.” (pg. 1)

Members may enroll in dental coverage only when they are first eligible for HOP, or if they have a subsequent qualifying event, and must also enroll in either the HOP Medical Plan or the Value Medical Plan.

Please confirm, if a spouse is under age 65, can they enroll in the voluntary dental plan?

Spouses and dependents must also be enrolled in the HOP Medical or Value Medical program to be eligible for dental plan.

Please confirm, if a surviving spouse, can they enroll in the voluntary dental plan?  If so, are there any stipulations (e.g. pension receiving spouses)?

Spouses and dependents must also be enrolled in the HOP Medical or Value Medical program to be eligible for dental plan.

Can carriers submit electronically only due to the COVID-19 pandemic and subsequent stay at home orders and office closures?

PSERS is amending its Proposal Submission Requirements. Please monitor website for all communications regarding the RFP. 

http://www.emarketplace.state.pa.us/Search.aspx
The Issuing Office will not accept proposals via email or facsimile transmission

Please confirm total points available in the evaluation. 

1000 points

Please confirm carriers must review and redline, and that they need to be included with the proposal response.

It is not clear what Articles I, II, and III refer to, therefore PSERS cannot provide an answer.

Please confirm if the service performance set forth in Section III-5, c-f are referencing the requested Performance Guarantees. If not and these are separate standards, can you please clarify the additional detail and the requested metrics required for the quarterly service reports?

Quarterly Reports service performance guarantee are outlined in Section III-6.B.2 requested reports are provided 20 business days after the end of the quarter. Metrics for items in Section III-5.F.1 thru 3 Telephone Customer Service Responsiveness, Telephone Inquiry Responsiveness and Written Correspondence are in Section III-6.B.1. All other items should represent your organization’s standard reporting and Account Management services.

Please confirm if PSERS is currently fully insured or self-funded.

PSERS’ dental plan is currently fully insured.

If self-funded, please confirm the administrative fee (PEPM) and any network access fees.  
If self-funded, on the experience file does the total benefits paid include admin fee amount or is this solely paid claims? Can you please provide the total paid admin fee broken out from paid claims by month?
If fully insured, please confirm current rates by tier.

[bookmark: _GoBack]PSERS will not release current and historical fully insured per member per month rate.

Small Business & Small Diverse Business Participation:
Is the Total Cost requirement based on self-funded premium or fully insured premium?
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Are carriers permitted to submit a good faith efforts if meeting the requirement is unattainable?

Please see answer given above regarding the Small Diverse Business and Small Business Programs.

Is the current carrier meeting SDBSB participation requirements?

PSERS will not be providing a response.

Please confirm if PSERS requires dental packets/information sent annually to all enrolled members or just newly enrolled members?

Information is sent annually in personalized statements and kits as well as at meetings with newly eligible retirees. The Offeror will be required to assist in the development and distribution of communications. PSERS develops its own consolidated communications for all its programs and the Offeror would coordinate with PSERS, the HOP Administration Unit (TPA) and its consultant on the enrollment process and materials distribution. The Contractor may be responsible for distribution of any approved additional communications requested directly from the member.

Will PSERS require physical ID cards sent to enrollees?

Physical ID cards are not required.

What kind of current communications is the current dental carrier sending each year, and to what populations (newly enrolled or all enrolled)?

The Offeror will be required to assist in the development and distribution of communications. PSERS develops its own consolidated communications for all its programs and the Offeror would coordinate with PSERS, the HOP Administration Unit (TPA) and its consultant on the enrollment process and materials distribution. The Contractor may be responsible for distribution of any approved additional communications requested directly from the member.

Please provide a census file showing all eligible employees, enrolled elections (enrolled or waived), enrollment tier, and member zip code.

Once your organization submits the signed NDA, you will receive via secure email the Attachment A – Medical Enrollment as of January 2020 which contains home zip codes of all eligible members. There is no census available that shows enrollment nor tier elected

Please confirm when carriers can expect to receive the additional data that would be provided upon submitting the NDA.

Once your organization submits the signed NDA, you will receive the additional data via secure email as quickly as possible.

Will PSERS consider reassessing the RFP due date dependent upon when carriers receive the additional information?

All proposals must be received by the Issuing Office at PSERS at close on April 15.

Please provide Appendix F – Iran Free Procurement Certification.


		

Please provide Appendix G – Trade Secret Confidential Proprietary Information Notice Form.


		

Please provide a claims reprice (full claim data detail by line) to assist with pricing.

Claims repricing is not requested. We are requesting respondents’ to provide in Section III-3.D. so self-report their average negotiated discounts for Western PA, North & Central PA, Eastern PA. PSERS will not be providing a claims repricing file.

Please provide a network utilization by benefit category (submitted and paid) for in-network vs. out-of-network.

For both calendar year 2019 and for calendar year 2018, 87% of benefits paid are in-network and 82% of service counts are in-network.

Page 33 – Enrollment – It does not define a mid-year retirement. If the member retires mid-year, are they entitled to full benefits under the retirement coverage?

Members may enroll in dental coverage only when they are first eligible for HOP, or if they have a subsequent qualifying event, and must also enroll in either the HOP Medical Plan or the Value Medical Plan.

Page 40 – Alternate Benefit – Please clarify if the current carrier requires a dentist to make the alternate benefit determination.

PSERS requests that you provide your dental insurance coverage consistent with your standard claims practices and insurance policies and certificates. The MetLife dental certificate has been provide to you so that you may generally understand the current dental program. PSERS will not be able to provide responses to any of MetLife’s specific dental claims practices.

Page 41 – First Paragraph – Exam, pre and post x-rays, filling needed for Root Canal Therapy (RCT) – not able to bill separately, if so only pay for RCT ? All other services should be denied? This would also apply to Implants (requires multiple sessions)

PSERS requests that you provide your dental insurance coverage consistent with your standard claims practices and insurance policies and certificates. The MetLife dental certificate has been provide to you so that you may generally understand the current dental program. PSERS will not be able to provide responses to any of MetLife’s specific dental claims practices.

Page 43 - #3 – Anesthesia – We have all anesthesia pre-authorized and paid by the Medical Carrier not Dental. Since the HP is not the medical carrier, can we still apply our logic or do we need to cover anesthesia services under dental?

General anesthesia or intravenous sedation in connection with oral surgery, extractions or other covered services, when determine that such anesthesia is necessary in accordance with generally accepted dental standards is a covered expense under the dental coverage. 

Page 44 - #18 – Veneers – Please confirm if this applies to Anterior teeth only. 

There are no specific exclusions for certain procedures on either posterior or anterior teeth in the MetLife certificate. PSERS requests that you provide your dental insurance coverage consistent with your standard claims practices and insurance policies and certificates. The MetLife dental certificate has been provide to you so that you may generally understand the current dental program. PSERS will not be able to provide responses to any of MetLife’s specific dental claims practices. If your proposal excludes veneers on posterior teeth, please identify it as a deviation.

· Page 46 - #27 – Missing Tooth Clause – If the member loses a nature tooth while covered under the PSERS’ “active” plan, would the appliance qualify for benefits? If so, we will need prior history with a tooth map/chart to make these determinations.

There is a specific exclusions in the MetLife certificate for certain procedures associated with missing teeth insured for dental insurance. The MetLife dental certificate has been provide to you so that you may generally understand the current dental program. PSERS will not be able to provide responses to any of MetLife’s specific dental claims practices. PSERS requests that you provide your dental insurance coverage consistent with your standard claims practices and insurance policies and certificates. Please describe what your organization would exclude or include.
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IranFreeProcurementCertificationForm.pdf


 


BOP-1701  
Published: 1/26/2017 
 


IRAN FREE PROCUREMENT CERTIFICATION FORM 
 


(Pennsylvania’s Procurement Code Sections 3501-3506, 62 Pa.C.S. §§ 3501-3506) 
 
To be eligible for an award of a contract with a Commonwealth entity for goods or services worth at least 
$1,000,000 or more, a vendor must either:  a) certify it is not on the current list of persons engaged in investment 
activities in Iran created by the Pennsylvania Department of General Services (“DGS”) pursuant to Section 3503 of 
the Procurement Code and is eligible to contract with the Commonwealth under Sections 3501-3506 of the 
Procurement Code; or b) demonstrate it has received an exception from the certification requirement for that 
solicitation or contract pursuant to Section 3503(e).   
 
To comply with this requirement, please insert your vendor or financial institution name and complete one of the 
options below. Please note: Pennsylvania law establishes penalties for providing false certifications, including civil 
penalties equal to the greater of $250,000 or twice the amount of the contract for which the false certification was 
made; contract termination; and three-year ineligibility to bid on contracts. (Section 3503 of the Procurement Code.) 
 
OPTION #1 - CERTIFICATION  
I, the official named below, certify I am duly authorized to execute this certification on behalf of the 
vendor/financial institution identified below, and the vendor/financial institution identified below is not on the 
current list of persons engaged in investment activities in Iran created by DGS and is eligible to contract with the 
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania Sections 3501-3506 of the Procurement Code. 
 


Vendor Name/Financial Institution (Printed) 


By (Authorized Signature) 


 Printed Name and Title of Person Signing Date Executed 


 
 
OPTION #2 – EXEMPTION  
Pursuant to Procurement Code Section 3503(e), DGS may permit a vendor/financial institution engaged in 
investment activities in Iran, on a case-by-case basis, to enter into a contract for goods and services.  
 
If you have obtained a written exemption from the certification requirement, please fill out the information below, 
and attach the written documentation demonstrating the exemption approval.   
 


Vendor Name/Financial Institution (Printed) 


By (Authorized Signature) 


 Printed Name and Title of Person Signing Date Executed 


 
 





		IRAN FREE PROCUREMENT CERTIFICATION FORM

		(Pennsylvania’s Procurement Code Sections 3501-3506, 62 Pa.C.S. §§ 3501-3506)

		OPTION #1 - CERTIFICATION

		OPTION #2 – EXEMPTION
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TradeSecret_ConfidentialPropertyInfoNotice.pdf


Trade Secret/Confidential Proprietary Information Notice 


Instructions: 


The Commonwealth will not assert on behalf of a third party an exception to the public release 
of materials containing information believed to be exempt from public disclosure, including 
trade secrets or confidential proprietary information, unless the materials are accompanied, at the 
time they are submitted, by this form or a document containing similar information.  In addition, 
in order to protect the safety and security of individuals, infrastructure, and information 
technology systems, the Commonwealth requires third parties to designate as confidential any 
information submitted by the third parties that, if disclosed, would be reasonably likely to 
jeopardize safety or security. 


It is the responsibility of the party submitting this form to ensure that all statements and 
assertions made below are legally defensible and accurate.  The Commonwealth will not provide 
a submitting party any advice with regard to Pennsylvania’s Right-to-Know Law, 65 P.S. §§ 
67.101—67.3104, or laws relating to trade secret or confidential proprietary information. 


Name of submitting party: 


Contact information for submitting party: 


Please provide a brief overview of the materials that you are submitting (e.g. bid proposal, 
quote, grant application, statement of work, technical schematics): 


Please provide a brief explanation of why the materials are being submitted to the 
Commonwealth (e.g. response to bid, RFP or RFQ #12345, application for grant XYZ being 
offered by the Department of Health, documents required to be submitted under law ABC): 



http://www.legis.state.pa.us/CFDOCS/LEGIS/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=2008&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=0003.

http://www.legis.state.pa.us/CFDOCS/LEGIS/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=2008&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=0003.





Please indicate if any information has been included that you believe is exempt from public 
disclosure by checking the appropriate box below:  (Note:  Financial information submitted in 
response to an RFP or IFB to demonstrate economic capability is exempt from public disclosure in 
accordance with Section 708(b)(26) of the Right-to-Know Law, 65 P.S. 67.708(b)(26)). 


 No information has been included that I believe is exempt from public
disclosure.


 Information has been included that I believe is exempt from public
disclosure.


Please provide a list detailing which portions of the material being submitted you believe 
are exempt from public disclosure.  This includes trade secret, confidential or proprietary 
information, or information that if disclosed would be reasonably likely to jeopardize the 
safety or security of an individual, infrastructure, or information technology system. 
Please provide an explanation of why you think those materials constitute a trade secret, 
confidential or proprietary information, or why disclosure of those materials would be 
reasonably likely to jeopardize safety or security.  Also, please mark the submitted material 
in such a way to allow a reviewer to easily distinguish between the parts referenced below.  
(You may attach additional pages if needed) 


Note:  Without substantial justification, the following information will not be considered 
a trade secret or confidential proprietary information: 
• Any information submitted as part of a vendor’s cost response.
• Information submitted as part of a vendor’s technical response or


statement of work that does not implicate safety and security, or pertain
to specific business practices or product specification.


• Information submitted as part of a vendor’s technical or small diverse
business and small business response that is otherwise publicly available
or otherwise easily obtained.


• Information detailing the name, quantity, and price paid for any product
or service being purchased by the Commonwealth.


Page Number      Description  Explanation 



http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=2008&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=3&chpt=7&sctn=8&subsctn=0

http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/Legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=2008&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=0003.

http://www.legis.state.pa.us/cfdocs/legis/LI/uconsCheck.cfm?txtType=HTM&yr=2008&sessInd=0&smthLwInd=0&act=3&chpt=7&sctn=8&subsctn=0





Acknowledgment 
 
The undersigned party hereby agrees that it has read and completed this form, and has marked the 
material being submitted in accordance with the instructions above.  The undersigned party 
acknowledges that the Commonwealth is not liable for the use or disclosure of trade secret, 
confidential or proprietary information, or information that if disclosed would be reasonably likely 
to jeopardize the safety or security of an individual, infrastructure or information technology 
system, where that data or information has not been clearly marked as such, and which was not 
accompanied by a specific explanation included with this form. 
 
The undersigned agrees to defend any action seeking release of the materials it believes to be trade 
secret, confidential or proprietary, or would be reasonably likely to result in a safety or security 
risk if disclosed.  The undersigned also agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the 
Commonwealth, its agents and employees, from any judgments awarded against the 
Commonwealth in favor of the party requesting the materials, and any and all costs connected 
with that defense.  This indemnification survives so long as the Commonwealth has possession of 
the submitted material, and will apply to all costs unless and until the undersigned provides a 
written statement or similar notice to the Commonwealth stating that it no longer wishes to 
exempt the submitted material from public disclosure. 
 
The undersigned acknowledges that the Commonwealth is required to keep all records for at least 
as long as specified in its published records retention schedule. 
 
The undersigned acknowledges that the Commonwealth reserves the right to reject the 
undersigned’s claim that the information is trade secret, confidential, proprietary or is reasonably 
likely to result in a safety or security risk if disclosed, if the Commonwealth determines that the 
undersigned has not met the burden of establishing that the information constitutes a trade secret, 
confidential, or is otherwise exempt.  The undersigned also acknowledges that if only a certain 
part of the submitted material is found to constitute a trade secret, is confidential or proprietary, or 
is otherwise exempt, the remainder of the submitted material will become public; only the 
protected information will be removed and remain nonpublic. 
 
If being submitted electronically, the undersigned agrees that the mark below is a valid electronic 
signature. 
 
 
 
 
 


Signature             Title    Date 
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Periodontics-Non Surgical Periodontal scaling and root planing once per quadrant, every 12
months

Total number of periodontal maintenance treatments and
prophylaxis cannot exceed four treatments in a calendar year





